
     

 

 
Notice of a public meeting of  

Decision Session - Cabinet Member for Communities 
 
To: Councillor Simpson-Laing 

 
Date: Tuesday, 10 February 2015 

 
Time: 11.00am 

 
Venue: The Craven Room  - Ground Floor, West Offices (G048) 

 
A G E N D A 

 

Notice to Members - Calling In: 
 
Members are reminded that, should they wish to call in any item* on 
this agenda, notice must be given to Democratic Services by: 
 
4:00pm on Thursday 12 February 2015  if an item is called in after a 
decision has been taken. 
 
*With the exception of matters that have been subject of a previous 
call in, require Full Council approval or are urgent which are not 
subject to the call-in provisions. Any called in items will be considered 
by the Corporate and Scrutiny Management Committee. 
 

Written representations in respect of an item on this agenda should 
be submitted to Democratic Services by 5.00pm on Friday 6 
February 2015. 

 
1. Declarations of Interest   

At this point in the meeting, the Cabinet Member is asked to 
declare: 
 

 any personal interests not included on the Register of 
Interests 

 any prejudicial interests or 

 any disclosable pecuniary interests 
 

        which they might have in respect of business on this agenda. 
 

 



 

 

  
 

2. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 4)  
 To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on Monday 

22 December 2014. 
 

3. Public Participation    
 At this point in the meeting, members of the public who have 

registered their wish to speak at the meeting can do so. The 
deadline for registering is 5:00pm on Monday 9 February 2015. 
 
Members of the public may speak on: 

 an item on the agenda, 

 an issue within the Cabinet Member’s remit. 

 
Filming or Recording Meetings 
Please note this meeting will be audio recorded and that includes 
any registered public speakers, who have given their permission. 
This broadcast can be viewed at 
http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts. 
 
Residents are welcome to photograph, film or record Councillors 
and Officers at all meetings open to the press and public. This 
includes the use of social media reporting, i.e. tweeting. Anyone 
wishing to film, record or take photos at any public meeting 
should contact the Democracy Officers (whose contact details 
are at the foot of this agenda) in advance of the meeting. 
 
The Council’s protocol on Webcasting, Filming & Recording of 
Meetings ensures that these practices are carried out in a 
manner both respectful to the conduct of the meeting and all 
those present. It can be viewed at 
http://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/download/3130/protocol_for_
webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings 
 

4. York Gypsy Roma & Travellers Sites- Rent Increase 
Petition  (Pages 5 - 12) 
On 9 December 2014 the Council received a petition signed by 
the residents of York’s three Gypsy Roma & Travellers sites. 
The petition relates to the 2014/15 travellers site rent increase, 
the first stage of which was implemented in April 2014 and the 
second stage of which was implemented on 1st December. The 
petition stated ‘We do NOT agree to these increased pitch 
fees’. This report provides the background to this petition and 
asks for a decision on how to proceed. 

 

http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts
http://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/download/3130/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings
http://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/download/3130/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings


 

 

  
5. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Cabinet Member considers urgent 

under the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

Democracy Officers: 
 
Names: Catherine Clarke and Louise Cook (job share) 
Contact Details: 

 Telephone – (01904) 551031 
 E-mail – catherine.clarke@york.gov.uk  and  

louise.cook@york.gov.uk  
 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officers responsible for servicing this meeting: 
 

 Registering to speak 

 Business of the meeting 

 Any special arrangements 

 Copies of reports and 

 For receiving reports in other formats 
 

Contact details are set out above. 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

mailto:catherine.clarke@york.gov.uk
mailto:louise.cook@york.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

Meeting Decision Session - Cabinet Member for 
Communities 

Date 22 December 2014 

Present Councillor Simpson-Laing (Cabinet Member) 

 

48. Declarations of Interest  
 
The Cabinet Member was asked to declare any personal 
interests not included on the Register of Interests, any 
prejudicial or any disclosable interests that she might have had 
in the business on the agenda. She declared none. 
 
 

49. Minutes  
 
Resolved:  That the minutes of the Decision Session- Cabinet 

Member for Homes & Safer Communities & Cabinet 
Member for Finance & Performance (Joint Decision 
Session) held on 4 December 2014 be approved 
and signed as a correct record. 

 
 

50. Public Participation  
 
It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak at 
the meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme. 
 
 

51. Changes to City of York Council Housing Tenancy 
Agreement.  
 
The Cabinet Member considered a report which sought 
approval for proposed changes to the tenancy agreement for all 
existing and future council housing tenants, in particular 
significant changes to succession rights. 
 
Officers introduced the report and the reasons for the changes, 
in particular the removal of the automatic ‘second’ succession 
right to inherit a tenancy. 
 
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 2



The Cabinet Member stated that she was pleased to see that 
consultation had been carried out with the York Federation of 
Tenants and Residents Associations over the proposed 
changes.  
 
She gave consideration to the following options: 
 
Option 1- To retain the existing tenancy agreement. 
 
Option 2- To agree the proposed changes, including succession 

rights to bring the tenancy agreement in line with 
current legislation and to consult with sheltered 
scheme tenants regarding the proposed amendments 
to agreements for Sheltered Schemes. 

 
Option 3- To reduce the existing succession rights but not to the 

level set out in the Localism Act and who these can 
apply to along with other changes and to consult with 
sheltered scheme tenants regarding the proposed 
amendments to agreements for Sheltered Schemes. 

 
Resolved: That Option 2, (to agree the proposed changes 

including succession rights to bring the tenancy 
agreement in line with current legislation and to 
consult with Sheltered Housing Tenants on the 
changes specific to their housing schemes) be 
approved. 

 
Reason:    This will bring the tenancy agreement in line with the 

Localism Act and other changes identified and agreed 
through consultation. This will reduce the risk of 
expensive legal challenge and maximise the use of 
the authority’s housing stock. 

 
 

52. Housing and Community Safety Legal Actions  
 
The Cabinet Member considered a report which enabled her to 
review the results of legal actions (prosecutions, cautions and 
fixed penalties) undertaken by Environmental Health, Trading 
Standards, Licensing, the Regional Scambuster Team, and the 
National Trading Standards eCrime Centre as well as action 
taken by Housing Services for the period 1 April 2014 to 30 
September 2014. 
 

Page 2



The Cabinet Member was informed about work carried out 
before legal action was pursued. It was highlighted that legal 
action was only taken when previous work with customers to 
modify behaviour had failed. 
 
The Cabinet Member thanked all the teams for all the work they 
had done.  
 
Resolved:  That the report be noted. 
 
Reason:     So that the Cabinet Member reviews formal 

enforcement activity undertaken by Environmental 
Health, Trading Standards, Licensing, the Regional 
Scambuster Team, and the National Trading 
Standards eCrime Centre and Housing Services. 

 
 

53. Sales of Age Restricted Products  
 
The Cabinet Member considered a report which informed her of 
the work undertaken by City of York (CYC) Trading Standards 
Service to prevent the illegal sales of age-restricted products. It 
sought approval for the programme of action for the next 12 
months regarding the enforcement of: 
 

(i) The Children and Young Persons (Protection from 
Tobacco) Act 1991 in relation to cigarettes and 
tobacco. 

 
(ii) The Anti Social Behaviour Act 2003 in relation to aerosol 

paint. 
 

The following Options were considered: 
 
Option 1- The Council continue with the programme of 

education and enforcement action as set out in 
paragraph 5 of the report, for the next 12 months. 

 
Option 2- The Council may adopt a different programme of 

education and enforcement. 
 
The Cabinet Member felt that the Council should continue with 
the existing programme of education and enforcement action as 
it was producing good results and low levels of sales. 
 

Page 3



Resolved: That the report be noted and Option 1 (the 
programme of education and enforcement action for 
the next 12 months as set out at paragraph 5 of the 
Officer’s report) be approved. 

 
Reason:   To minimise the level of illegal underage sales in the 

city. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Councillor T Simpson-Laing, Cabinet Member 
[The meeting started at 11.05 am and finished at 11.20 am]. 

Page 4



 

 

  
 

   

 
Decision Session - Cabinet  Member for 
Communities  

10 February 2015 

 
Report of the Assistant Director of Housing & Community Safety 

 

York Gypsy Roma & Travellers Sites- Rent Increase Petition 

Summary 

1. On 9 December 2014 the Council received a petition signed by residents 
of York’s three Gypsy Roma & Travellers sites. The petition relates to the 
2014/15 travellers site rent increase, the first stage of which was 
implemented in April 2014 and the second stage of which was 
implemented on the 1st December. The petition stated ‘We do NOT 
agree to these increased pitch fees’. This report provides the background 
to this petition and asks for a decision on how to proceed. 

 Background 

2. In January 2014 the Council wrote to all of the then pitch holders and 
advised them that it proposed to increase their rents to reflect both the 
rise in the cost of living and a sum (£25pw) needed to address the 
increased costs of running the sites. 

 
3. Following the letters staff visited the sites to speak to residents and only 

a small minority verbally objected to the increase, however, a petition 
was received from the residents on the Clifton site. On the day of the 
officer’s visit, when the petition was handed over, only three out of twenty 
three households on the Clifton site held a strong view about the rent 
increase.  

 
4. However, there was considerable objection to the increase by the York 

Travellers Trust and in light of this and the petition the Council agreed to 
phase the increases with the cost of living rise implemented from the 1st 
April 2014 and the second phase of the increase, linked to addressing 
the increased costs of managing the sites, to be delayed until there had 
been further discussions with those concerned. 

 
 

Page 5 Agenda Item 4



 

5. Council officers and the Cabinet Member for Communities held a number 
of in depth meetings with the York Travellers Trust and it was agreed to 
bring invite an independent expert, (David Bailey from Fenland District 
Council) to bring a new and wider perspective to discussions, in an 
attempt to find a resolution. The independent expert provided helpful 
advice on the future management and improvements that could be made 
in communications.  During these meetings it was proposed to reduce 
the proposed rent increase from £25 per pitch per week to £12.90. This 
was on the basis that by appointing an additional staffing resource, 
issues relating to fly tipping and other forms of Anti Social Behaviour 
(ASB) would reduce. Unfortunately, despite the negotiations, officers of 
the Council and the York Travellers Trust where unable to reach an 
agreement. 

 
6.  Officers returned to Cabinet on 9th September 2014 and proposed within 

the finance monitoring report a second phase increase £12.90 per week.   
 
7. Following Cabinet approval of the recommended increase, all Pitch 

holders were written to and visited by the Council explaining what 
decision had been reached and informing them of what action they 
needed to take if they were in disagreement with the increased pitch 
fees.  No pitch holder confirmed through the formal process required that 
they were in dispute with this reduced second phase of the increase.  
The second phase of the increase was then implemented on the 1st 
December 2014. Following the implementation of the increase an audit 
of the rent accounts shows that all of the pitch holders have 
independently accepted the increase by virtue of either paying it 
themselves or by allowing the additional payment through their benefit 
payment 

 
8. The Council received a petition on 9 December 2014 signed by residents 

of the cities three Gypsy Roma & Travellers sites. This was nine days 
after phase two of the annual increase became effective. At this point the 
overwhelming majority of pitch holders had already paid the increases 
and thus independently signified their consent before the petition was 
received, subsequently all have paid the increase, the Council is 
therefore entitled to continue to rely on their agreement.  However, it is 
still in the Council’s power to review the increase as appropriate.  
Furthermore, the petition has been signed by at least 7 pitch holders who 
are not affected by the increase.  

 
9. Over the past years the Council has worked alongside the York 

Travellers Trust and community members to increase support and 
management of the sites and repeated requests have been made by 
them for the Council to increase its staff resources so as to address key 

Page 6



 

issues associated with the physical environment on sites include fly 
tipping, fly grazing, animal welfare issues, dog fouling, unauthorised 
encampments and vandalism.  

 
10. The Council has also received comment from the wider community 

raising concerns about the support to the travelling community and 
management of the sites. Significant efforts have been made to address 
the concerns of these parties as well as local residents from the settled 
community, including bringing together all aspects of site management 
into a single Management Plan for the sites.  In addition to this a key part 
of the planning conditions for the extension of the Osbaldwick site were 
that a “Management Plan” be developed and a permanent community 
facility “site office” be established as part of the scheme. This requires 
additional staffing resources to facilitate. 

 
11. Through researching and proposing options regarding improved 

management of the sites, officers have contacted and visited other 
organisations and individuals managing sites across the region to learn 
from their experiences and practice. We have also learnt that rents on 
other sites across the region and beyond tend to be higher than those 
charged in York. Information has been provided previously regarding 
these figures. This additional funding is invested in additional 
management staffing resources, community facilities on sites.          

 
12. Meanwhile, the York Travellers Trusts objections are thought not to be to 

the provision of additional staffing resources and facilities, which they 
have requested and endorsed the benefits of, but rather that the 
Travellers are being asked to meet the costs of managing the sites. It is 
the view of the York Travellers Trust that the additional funding 
requirements should be found from the Councils General Fund.    

  
13. Following a comprehensive dialogue with the York Travellers Trust an 

agreement could not be reached regarding how the increase would be 
funded.  The reduced rent increase of £12.90 was presented to Cabinet 
in October 2014 and approved as part of the quarterly finance monitor. 

 
Consultation  
 
14. Over recent years the Council has engaged in numerous discussions 

with the community, in written and verbal formats, collectively and 
individually, regarding the escalating costs to the Council of responding 
to the management issues on the sites, and the potential of a rent 
increase if these could not be cost effectively managed/reversed with 
existing resources. The costs of managing the sites, including rubbish 
clearance and legal costs have increased despite our best efforts. 

Page 7



 

 
15. A regular dialogue has been ongoing with the Travellers Trust for many 

years regarding joint approaches to improving the sites and the need for 
additional resources.  At the time of the Council’s approval of the initially 
proposed rent increase in January 2014 the York Travellers Trust was 
contacted.  In the first instance there was no significant concern raised 
by them regarding this increase. 

16. There has also been an ongoing dialogue with individuals in the 
community on sites in order to explain the reasons for the increase, the 
role and purpose of the new site supervisor/manager and the 
improvements we expect to receive.  

17. Organisations across the region have been visited and consulted 
regarding our proposals to increase rents. Without exception all those 
consulted charge rents above York’s levels to ensure they have 
adequate resources to meet the costs of managing the sites effectively. 

 
18. A legal officer has also worked alongside officers regarding key aspects 

of the rent increase. 
 
19. In our successful funding bid to the Homes and Communities Agency 

(HCA) they endorsed the higher rents charged by York for the new six 
pitches at Osbaldwick.  

 
Options 

20. Option1 – Acknowledge receipt of the petition, but recognise that the 
Council has consulted with the community and their representatives and 
complied with the legal requirements to increase the rent and therefore 
continue to support the second phase of the rent increase which was 
implemented on 1 December 2014.  

 
21. Option 2 – Request officers to prepare a report for Cabinet 
 recommending the withdrawal of the (second phase of the) rent 
 increase with and not pursue the appointment of a Site 
 Manager/Supervisor.  

 
22. Option 3 – Request that officers identify other options.   

  
Analysis 

 
23. Option 1- Phase two of the increase of £12.90 has been independently 

agreed to by the vast majority of pitch holders, signalling their agreement 
to the increase and in all cases the increased rent charge is being paid. 
 

Page 8



 

24. The planning consent for the redevelopment of the Osbaldwick site 
requires the Council to produce and work to a management Plan, as well 
as erect a permanent community facility in order to address the 
perceived management issues on the Osbaldwick site. These cannot be 
achieved without additional management resources.  
 

25. When considering how the new rent charge compares with other 
organisations across the region for Gypsy Roma & Traveller Pitch’s, all 
other organisations charge rents in excess of that charged in York. 
 

26. York Travellers Trust and the community themselves, have requested 
improvements to the sites and additional staffing resources for several 
years.  They do not object to the investment of additional staffing but do 
not want the travelling community to have to pay this increase, but rather 
that this is funded by the Councils General Fund.  
 

27. With the proposed appointment it is hoped that it will not be necessary to 
contemplate further “above cost of living” rent increases or outsourcing 
options although these cannot be ruled out entirely.  A lot depends on 
the success of the post holder in reducing the level of arrears, vandalism, 
fly-tipping, animal mistreatment etc. 
 

28. Option 2 - This would satisfy the petitioners’ position.  The organisers of 
the petition, The York Travellers Trust, has advocated that the Council 
should increase the resources allocated to managing the Travellers sites 
within the city, but that the cost of this should not be borne by the 
travelling community but  from the General Fund. 

 
29. The current allocated budget does not have the capacity to fund the 

appointment of an additional member of staff.  Failure to increase the 
staffing capacity in this area brings with it significant risks, the 
Management Plan and community facility would not be adequately 
resourced and we would not realise the benefits associated with the new 
facility.  Failure to positively deliver these benefits could bring 
reputational damage to CYC. The management issues on site would not 
improve and matters could deteriorate making inevitable further “above 
cost of living” rent increases to cover the costs associated with managing 
the sites. 
 

30. Option 3 - Without the rent rise and the appointment it is anticipated that 
the amenity of the sites will continue to deteriorate both necessitating 
further rent increases above cost of living and the search for other 
options.  
 
 

Page 9



 

Council Plan 
 

31. This paper supports the Council plan Priority to “Build Strong 
Communities”, through increasing the support to the Travelling 
Community. 
 

 Implications 

32. The implications arising directly from this report are: 

 Financial – The £12.90 increase generates additional income of 
£37,000 per annum, this will be used to employ an additional 
resource to provide support and increased management of the sites. 

 Human Resources (HR) - The additional member of staff will be 
appointed in accordance with the council’s recruitment procedures.  

 Equalities- A community impact assessment (CIA) was completed 
in January when the original increase of £25 was proposed. The CIA 
has been revisited following the change to £12.90. The impact 
largely remains the same however the financial impact is obviously 
smaller. Clearly the proposal is intended to have a positive effect by 
improving the site management. The financial effect of the increase 
on the vast majority of the residents is mitigated by housing benefit.  
 

It is intended that the improvement will assist with social cohesion 
on the site and the wider community. In considering the increase the 
authority has looked at charges on other sites in the surrounding 
region and these proposals are broadly comparable. The intention to 
employ a site manager is consistent with national guidance best 
practice. Officers have attempted to mitigate the increase by offering 
support on maximising their income  

 

 Legal The council’s solicitor has advised that the Council’s actions 
are in compliance with both the legislation and the facts of the 
situation The Council has received a pre-action letter indicating a 
judicial review application from the York Travellers Trust. Counsel’s 
opinion is being sought on the merits of such an action. The 
outcome of this will be dealt with separately through the appropriate 
legal channels. 

 Crime and Disorder- The increased income is intended to increase 
the management resource and improve the management of the 
sites. 

 Information Technology (IT) – There are no IT implications 

Page 10



 

 Property – There are no property implications 

 Other- There are no other implications 

Risk Management 
 

33. The key risks of not continuing to charge the implemented rent increase 
include: 
 

       Reputational damage if the Council is perceived to not be able to   
manage its sites effectively, as has been portrayed in the press and 
by some individuals and wider community groups. 

 

 Risks the sites become places where the community do not want to 
live due to stigma, physical deterioration or ASB.  

 

 Potential refusal to support any funding bids from the HCA if it is 
perceived the Council cannot manage its sites effectively 

 
Recommendations 

34. The Cabinet Member is asked to approve:  

 Option 1: Continue to support the second phase of the rent increase 
which was implemented on 1 December 2014.  

 

Reason: Phase 2 of the increase has been independently agreed to and paid 
by all of pitch holders. This additional funding will be used to appoint 
a site manager/ supervisor to improve the support and management 
of the sites. 

 
Author:  Chief Officer: 

 
Kate Grandfield 
Supported Housing 
Manager 
Housing 
 
Tel No.x4067 
 
 

Steve Waddington  
Assistant Director of Housing and Community 
Safety 
 

Report 
Approved 

√ 
Date 28 January 2015 

    

Wards Affected:  Osbaldwick, Heworth and Clifton, 
Rawcliffe and Clifton Without 

All  

 
 
For further information please contact the author of the report 

Page 11



 

 
Background Papers: 
 
1. Travellers Site Decision Session Report 19 January 2014 
2. Quarterly finance monitor- October 2014 
 
Abbreviations: 
CYC - City of York Council 
CIA - Community Impact Assessment 
ASB – Anti Social Behaviour 
HCA - Homes and Communities Agency 

Page 12


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	4 York Gypsy Roma & Travellers Sites- Rent Increase Petition

